
 

It is the desire of the Board to allow all citizens an opportunity to speak and to conduct business in an open, professional, 
and productive manner.  Persons not specifically listed on the agenda but wishing to speak must register with the Town Clerk 
prior to the start of the meeting.  These persons will be recognized by the Mayor during the “Recognition of Citizens Present” 
portion of the meeting.  A maximum of three (3) minutes will be allowed unless otherwise approved by a majority of the Board.  
Groups are urged to choose one spokesperson.  If you require additional time, you may ask to be placed on the agenda for 
the next regularly scheduled meeting of the Board.  This policy was adopted in an effort to allow the Board members 
adequate notice of business to come before it as well as time to familiarize themselves with an issue.  

Town of Boiling Springs 

P.O. BOX 1014 
BOILING SPRINGS, NC 28017 

Telephone 704-434-2357 
Fax 704-434-2358 

www.boilingspringsnc.net 

 
 
 

 

 

AGENDA 

TOWN OF BOILING SPRINGS BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
January 3, 2012 

7 p.m., Town Hall 
 

 
1. Call to Order – Max J. Hamrick, Mayor       - 

 
 

2. Approval of Minutes          3 
December 6, 2011 Regular Meeting 

 
 
3. Recognition of Citizens Present 

 
 
 

4. New Business           5 
− Public Hearing - Zoning Map Amendment, North Main Street 
− Cleveland County Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 
 

 
 
5. Staff Reports           22 

 
 
 

6. Commissioners’ Reports/Comments        23 
 
 
 

7. Mayor’s Report/Comments         23 
 



 
 
 
 
     The Board of Commissioners of the Town of Boiling Springs met December 6, 2011 at the Boiling 
Springs Town Hall.  Present were: Mayor Max J. Hamrick; Commissioners William Elliott, Darlene Gravett, 
James Beason, John Glenn, and Cliff Hamrick.  Town Attorney John Schweppe, III was also present.  Staff 
members present: Town Manager Zach Trogdon, Town Clerk Kimberly Greene, Finance Officer Rhonda 
Allen, Chief Randy Page, Sergeant Nathan Phillips, and Public Works Director Mike Gibert.   
                                                                              
    Others Present:  Jim Blalock, Scout Troop 115 with Scout Leaders Kelly Gragg, Richard Tate, Steve 
Hodges, and Jim Guffey 
 
AGENDA ITEM I 
Call to Order – Max J. Hamrick, Mayor     
                                                                                                                                                       
AGENDA ITEM II 
Recognition of Citizens Present     
     Mayor Hamrick welcomed Scout Troop 115.  The scouts were present to observe the meeting for their 
citizenship and oral communications merit badges.   
  
AGENDA ITEM III 
Approval of Minutes 
      Commissioner Elliott made the motion to approve minutes of the November 1, 2011 regular meeting as 
previously mailed.  Commissioner Gravett seconded and the vote was unanimous.  
 
AGENDA ITEM IV 
Oath of Office 
     Attorney John Schweppe, III administered the oath of office to Commissioner Darlene Gravett, 
Commissioner John Glenn, and Commissioner Clifford Hamrick III.  Congratulations on your re-election! 
 
AGENDA ITEM V 
Fiscal Year 2010-2011 Financial Audit 
     The Board was prepared to hear from the auditor, Mr. Darrell L. Keller CPA, PA, regarding the Fiscal 
Year 2010-11 Financial Audit; unfortunately Mr. Keller was not able to attend the meeting but is expected at 
the January 3, 2012 meeting.     
 
Economic Infrastructure Grant Administration Documents 
     Commissioner Glenn made the motion to approve the Agreement between Isothermal Planning and 
Development Commission and the Town of Boiling Springs for the Provision of Grant Management 
Assistance Rural Center Economic Infrastructure Fund project to construct a sewer line to serve B&W Fiber 
Glass December 6, 2011 - September 30, 2013.   Commissioner Hamrick seconded and the vote was 
unanimous.  A copy of the Agreement is on file in the office of the Clerk. 
     Commissioner Elliott made the motion to approve the Administration and Inter-local Agreement between 
Isothermal Planning and Development Commission and the Town of Boiling Springs for the Provision of 
Grant Management Assistance Community Development Block Grant ED December 6, 2011 - December 6, 
2013.  Commissioner Hamrick seconded and the vote was unanimous.  A copy of the Agreement is on file 
in the office of the Clerk. 
     Mr. Trogdon reported Odom & Associates Engineering, Inc. had been recommended as engineer for the 
project based on various criteria considered by a selection committee.  Commissioner Beason made the 
motion to accept the recommendation that Odom & Associates Engineering, Inc. be hired as the project 
engineer.  Commissioner Gravett seconded and the vote was unanimous.  
 
Cash Management Policy Amendment 
     Rhonda Allen reviewed the proposed amendment adding a Spending Policy to the Cash Management 
Policy as discussed at an earlier meeting.  Commissioner Hamrick made the motion to approve Cash 
Management Policy Amendment.  Commissioner Gravett seconded and the vote was unanimous.  A copy 
of the Amendment is on file. 
 

3 of 23



 
AGENDA ITEM VI 
Staff Reports 
Rhonda Allen, Finance Officer, reported the following: 
     Rhonda Allen briefly discussed the FY 2010-11 Financial Audit.  The auditor recommended fixed assets 
capitalization be increased to $5,000.  The Board requested Ms. Allen provide a list of current assets and 
their value at the next Board meeting.  The auditor also recommended creating a cash disbursement form 
to document customer refund checks; which has already been implemented.   
     Ms. Allen also reviewed the draft Fund Balance Policy.  The North Carolina Local Government 
Commission (NCLGC) recommends that the unassigned fund balance should be a percentage of prior year 
expenditures to maintain fiscal responsibility under the Municipal Fiscal Control Act; and recommends this 
percentage should be no less than 8% of the prior year expenditures for any municipal government and 
further recommends that smaller units of government have an unassigned fund balance of significantly 
higher percentage in order to prevent cash flow difficulties and cover unforeseen needs or opportunities.  
The proposed Policy states when preparing the annual General Fund budget, the amount of appropriated 
fund balance should result in an anticipated ending unassigned fund balance of no less than the greater of 
20% or the average unassigned general fund balance of the last three years of budgeted expenditures.  
Commissioner Gravett made the motion to adopt the Fiscal Year End Fund Balance Policy for the General 
Fund.  Commissioner Elliott seconded and the vote was unanimous.  A copy of the Policy is on file.   
 
 Mike Gibert, Public Works Director, reported the following:          
     Commissioner Glenn made the motion to designate December 23 & 26, 2011 as the Christmas Holiday.  
Commissioner Beason seconded and the vote was unanimous. The garbage collection for December 23, 
2011 will be made on December 22, 2011 and the December 26, 2011 collection will be made on 
December 27, 2011. Also the garbage collection for January 2, 2012 will be made on January 3, 2012. 
     Mr. Gibert reported on a 3.8” rain event that resulted in only one load being pumped at the Lyman Street 
pump station.   
     The flow meter was moved back to a manhole located between North Main Street and Woodland 
Avenue to monitor for signs of improvement since repairs were made in the area.       
  
Zach Trogdon, Town Manager, reported the following: 
     The new Lodal trash truck is ready and expected to be delivered on December 9, 2011.                 
     Mr. Trogdon reported on the CVS construction.  Crosswalks will be installed once sidewalks are 
completed.  NCDOT advised Mr. Trogdon that the Town would be responsible for paying the cost of 
purchasing and installing walk signals for the intersection.  The Board directed Mr. Trogdon to proceed.   
     Mr. Trogdon also reported he was contacted by another resident with concerns regarding the YMCA’s 
performance. 
 
Randy Page, Police Chief, reported the following: 
     Chief Page and Sergeant Phillips provided a demonstration of the E-Citation and CJLEADS (Criminal 
Justice Law Enforcement Automated Data Services) programs.  
 
AGENDA ITEM VI 
Commissioner’s Report/Comments  
Commissioner Darlene Gravett reported on the following:      
     Commissioner Gravett reported how pleased she was with the Christmas decorations in Town.    
     County Manager David Dear’s retirement reception will be held on December 13, 2011.  
  
AGENDA ITEM VII 
Mayor’s Report/Comments  
     The Mayor was recently contacted by a resident from Clearwater Road regarding road maintenance.   
     There being no further business to come before the Board, Mayor Hamrick declared the meeting 
adjourned at 8:20 p.m.   

     
     Max J. Hamrick, Mayor 
  
   
 
    Kimberly Greene, Town Clerk 

Town Board Minutes 
December 6, 2011 

Page 2 4 of 23



Meeting Date:  January 3, 2012 
Subject:  New Business 
 
 
 

- Public Hearing – Zoning Map Amendment, North Main Street (p. 6) 
 
The 4 Sarratts have submitted an application for a zoning map amendment for property 
currently identified as 203, 207, and 211 North Main Street.  The P&Z Board voted to 
recommend approval of the map amendment.  A statement required by the Board is enclosed. 
 
 
 

 
- Cleveland County Hazard Mitigation Plan Update (p. 10) 

 
The Plan is a multi-jurisdictional plan maintained by Cleveland County.  It was initially adopted 
by the Town on March 7, 2006.  The Plan is required to be updated every 5 years.  There is 
nothing of significance that was changed in the Plan from this update.  I have enclosed a few 
pages from the Plan explaining the purpose and action strategies for review and the resolution 
that is required to adopt this update.   
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
Action Taken/Notes: 

5 of 23



6 of 23



7 of 23

Kim
Text Box

Kim
Text Box

Kim
Line

Kim
Line

Kim
Line

Kim
Line

Kim
Line

Kim
Text Box

Kim
Text Box

Kim
Typewritten Text

Kim
Text Box

Kim
Typewritten Text

Kim
Text Box

Kim
Line



 
 
 

 
 
 

Planning Board Statement 
 
 

The Town of Boiling Springs’ Planning Board believes that its 
action to approve this zoning map amendment petitioned for by 
the 4 Sarratts to rezone property located at 203, 207, and 211 North 
Main Street from R-15 to B-1, is based on the determination that 
the request is consistent with land use plans for Boiling Springs 
and considers the action to be reasonable and in the public interest 
for the following reasons:   
 
Factors that support approval of the rezoning request: 
 
 
1. The zoning map amendment continues the Town plan of 

zoning for non-residential/business uses on main corridors. 
 
2. Current uses on adjacent property are overwhelmingly 

commercial uses. 
 

 
 
 
 

______________________________ 
Chair 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

8 of 23



 
 
 

 
 
 

Governing Body Statement 
 
 
The Town of Boiling Springs’ Board of Commissioner believes that its action to 
approve/deny this zoning map amendment petitioned for by heirs of JL Sarratt to 
rezone property located on North Main St. from R-15 to B-1, is based on the 
determination that the request is consistent/inconsistent with land use plans for 
Boiling Springs and considers/does not consider the action to be reasonable and 
in the public interest for the following reasons:   

 
Factors that support approval/denial of the rezoning request: 
 
 
1.  
 
2.  
 

 
 
 
 

______________________________ 
Mayor 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9 of 23



 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION OF ADOPTION 
Cleveland County Multi-Jurisdictional 

Hazard Mitigation Plan 

 

WHEREAS, the citizens and property within the Town of Boiling Springs are subject to the 
effects of natural hazards and man-made hazard events that pose threats to lives and cause 
damages to property, and with the knowledge and experience that certain areas, i.e., flood 
hazard areas, are particularly susceptible to flood hazard events; and  

WHEREAS, the Town desires to seek ways to mitigate situations that may aggravate such 
circumstances; and 

WHEREAS, the Legislature of the State of North Carolina has in Part 6, Article 21 of Chapter 
143; Article 6 of Chapter 153A and Article 18 of chapter 153A of the North Carolina General 
Statutes, delegated to local governmental units the responsibility to adopt regulations 
designed to promote the public health, safety, and general welfare of its citizenry; and 

WHEREAS, the Legislature of the State of North Carolina has in Section 1 Part 166A of the 
North Carolina General Statutes (adopted in Session Law 2001-214—Senate Bill 300 
effective July 1, 2001), states in Item (a) (2) “For a state of disaster proclaimed pursuant to 
G.S. 166A-6(a) after November 1, 2004, the eligible entity shall have a hazard mitigation 
plan approved pursuant to the Stafford Act”; and 

WHEREAS, Section 322 of the Federal Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 states that local 
government must develop an All-Hazards Mitigation Plan in order to receive future Hazard 
Mitigation Grant Program Funds, and  

WHEREAS, it is the intent of the Board of Commissioners of the Town of Boiling Springs to 
fulfill this obligation in order that the County will be eligible for state assistance in the event 
that a state of disaster is declared for a hazard event affecting the County; 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE 
TOWN OF BOILING SPRINGS TO HEREBY: 

1. Adopt the Cleveland County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan; and 
 

2. Vest the Town Manager with the responsibility, authority, and the means to: 
 

(a) Inform all concerned parties of this action. 
 

(b) Cooperate with Federal, State and local agencies and private firms which undertake 
to study, survey, map, and identify floodplain or flood-related erosion areas, and 

Town of Boiling Springs 

P.O. BOX 1014 
BOILING SPRINGS, NC 28017 

Telephone 704-434-2357 
Fax 704-434-2358 

www.boilingspringsnc.net 

10 of 23



cooperate with neighboring communities with respect to management of adjoining 
floodplain and/or flood-related erosion areas in order to prevent aggravation of 
existing hazards. 

 

(c) Adjust the boundaries of the Town planning jurisdiction whenever a municipal 
annexation or extraterritorial jurisdiction revision results in a change whereby the 
Town assumes or relinquishes the authority to adopt and enforce floodplain 
management regulations for a particular area in order that all Flood Hazard Boundary 
Maps (FHBMs) and Flood Insurance Rate Maps (FIRMs) accurately represent the 
planning jurisdiction boundaries.  Provide notification of boundary revisions along 
with a map suitable for reproduction, clearly delineating municipal corporate limits, 
and extraterritorial jurisdiction boundaries to all concerned parties. 

 

3. Appoint the Town Manager to assure that the Hazard Mitigation Plan is reviewed annually 
and in greater detail at least once every five (5) years to assure that the Plan is in 
compliance with all State and Federal regulations and that any needed revisions or 
amendments to the Plan are developed and presented to the Board of Commissioners of the 
Town of Boiling Springs for consideration. 

 

4. Agree to take such other official action as may be reasonably necessary to carry out the 
objectives of the Hazard Mitigation Plan. 

 

Adopted the 3rd day of January, 2012. 

 

 

  ________________________________ 

Max Hamrick, Mayor 

  
Attest: 

 

__________________________________ 

Kim Greene, Town Clerk 

 

SEAL 

11 of 23



12 of 23



13 of 23



14 of 23



15 of 23



16 of 23



17 of 23



18 of 23



19 of 23



20 of 23



21 of 23



Meeting Date:  January 3, 2012 
Subject:  Staff Reports 
 
 
  

Police 
 
 

 
 
 
Public Works 
 
 
 
 
 
Finance 

 
 
 
 
 
Town Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
Town Attorney 

 
  
 

 
 
 
Town Manager 

 
 
 

22 of 23



Meeting Date:  January 3, 2012 
Subject:  Commissioners’ Reports 
 
 
 Commissioner Gravett 
 
 
 
 

Commissioner Elliott 
 
 
 
 
Commissioner Beason 
 
 
 
 
Commissioner Glenn 
 
 
 
 
Commissioner C. Hamrick 
 

 
  
 
 

 
 
Meeting Date:  January 3, 2012 
Subject:  Mayor’s Report 

23 of 23


	SarrattRezoning.pdf
	SarrattNMainApp.pdf
	SarrattNMainMap
	PZStmtSarrattNorthMain
	GovBdStmtSarrattNorthMain

	2011UpdateAdoptingResolution
	HazardMitigationBrief
	DOC122911
	DOC122911-001.pdf

	Staff_Manager_Report
	Commissioners_Mayor_Report



